
Civic Centre, Home Gardens, Dartford, Kent, DA1 1DR 
Tel: 01322 343434 Fax: 01322 343422 Web:www.dartford.gov.uk 

 
 
 

DEED, TRUST 
AND 

OBLIGATIONS 
COMMITTEE 

 
 

Councillor A R Martin (Chairman) 
Councillor J A Kite MBE (Vice-Chairman) 

 
Councillor Mrs S P Butterfill 

Councillor M J Davis 
Councillor T A Maddison 

Councillor Mrs P A Thurlow 
 

Mr P Draper (Independent Member) 
Mr J Gaskell (Independent Member) 
Mr M Gibson (Independent Member) 
Mr M Hussey (Independent Member) 

 
 

A meeting of the above Committee will be held on 
 

Thursday 24 April 2014 
 

at 7.00pm at the Civic Centre, Dartford 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 
 



 

 
DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE 

AGENDA 
 

Thursday 24 April 2014 
 
Guiding Principles  
  
In its decision making, the Charitable Trustee is bound by a number of guiding principles:  
  
(a)  that it  acts  reasonably  i.e.  decisions should  be  within  the  range  of decisions which a 

reasonable body of trustees could have made;  
  
(b)  that it acts within  the powers conferred upon  it and  the established  rules for procedures for 

dealing with issues of the kind under consideration;  
  
(c)  that it acts in good faith;  
  
(d)  that it adequately informs itself in order to make the decision in question, including  a  

comprehensive  risk  analysis  and  where  necessary,  makes further  enquiries  and  where  
appropriate,  considers  legal  and  other professional advice;  

  
(e)  that it does not take into consideration any factors which it is not proper for it to take into 

account;  
  
(f)  that it considers any factors which it should take into account. 
 
 

1. Apologies for Absence    

2. Declarations of Interest    

 To receive declarations of interest from Members including the 
terms(s) of the Grant of Dispensation (if any) by the Audit Board or 
Managing Director.  
 

 

3. Confirmation of Minutes of the meeting held on 10 M arch 2014  
(Pages 1 - 6) 

 

4. Urgent Items    

 The Chairman will announce his decision as to whether there are any 
urgent items and their position on the agenda.  
 

 

5. Hesketh Park and Dartford Cricket Club  (Pages 7 - 12)  

  
 
 
To consider the legal implications associated with the proposals for a 
new cricket pavilion at Hesketh Park Dartford.  
 

 



 

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 
 

TO RESOLVE: That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972 (as amended), the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the 
following item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure 
of exempt information. 
 
Items for Consideration in Private 
 
Confidential Appendix 
 
Hesketh Park and Dartford Cricket Club – Appendix A  – Legal Advice 
from external solicitor dated March 2014 (Exempt Ca tegory SO(46)(1)(b) 
Annex 1 Paragraph 5   

 

A. Legal Advice from external solicitor - Summary and Advice Note  
(Pages 13 - 22) 

 

 



1 

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES of the meeting of the Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee held on 
Monday 10 March 2014. 

 
PRESENT: 
 

Councillor A R Martin (Chairman) 
Councillor J A Kite, MBE (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Mrs S P Butterfill 
Councillor M J Davis 
Councillor T A Maddison 
 

 
INDEPENDENT 
MEMBERS: 
 

  
Mr J Gaskell 
Mr M Hussey 

 
ABSENT:  
 

Councillor Mrs P A Thurlow, Mr P Draper (Independent Member), 
Mr M Gibson (Independent) 
 

 Dartford Borough Council Officers: - 
 

 Graham Harris – Managing Director 
 Marie Kelly-Stone – Head of Legal Services 
 Dave Thomas – Waste and Parks Manager 
 Tony Philips – Heritage, Events and Projects 

Manager 
 

20. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillor Mrs P A Thurlow 
and Independent Co-opted Members Mr P Draper and Mr M Gibson.  
 
The Chairman welcomed the Managing Director and the Head of Legal 
Services to the meeting and noted the presence of the Waste and Parks 
Manager and the Heritage, Events and Projects Manager to respond to 
Members questions. 
 
 

21. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest from Members. 
 
The Chairman confirmed that no Members sat on the Development Control 
Board (DCB), given that a planning application was to be to be considered as 
part of the consultation process under agenda Item 7 – Hesketh Park and 
Dartford Cricket Club. 
 
In addition, the Head of Legal Services formally confirmed for the Minutes, 
that those Cabinet members present [Councillor Kite and Councillor Martin] 
were not conflicted for Item 7 as no funding issues were being addressed.  
 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE 
 

MONDAY 10 MARCH 2014 
 
 

2 

22. URGENT ITEMS  
 
The Chairman advised that there were no urgent items for consideration by 
the Committee, but proposed that Members consider the tabled bundle of 
correspondence (listed below) at this stage in the proceedings. The ‘bundle’ 
comprised: 
 

• a letter addressed to the Committee from Mr L P Ryan (member of the 
public) dated 3 February 2014; 

• a response from the Head of Legal Services to Mr Ryan dated 17 
February 2014, enclosing a further copy of the Charity Commission’s 
earlier response to Mr Ryan of May 2012; 

• copies of a subsequent email exchange between Mr Ryan and the 
Parks and Open Spaces Manager. 

 
The Chairman formally acknowledged receipt of Mr Ryan’s letter of 3 
February 2014 on behalf of the Committee and noted that senior Officers had 
responded to Mr Ryan in writing.  
 
He further noted the historical nature of several points in Mr Ryan’s latest 
letter and the fact that they had been addressed previously and on a definitive 
basis by the Committee, the Charity Commission, Charity Tribunal and the 
Courts. 
 
It was noted that Mr Ryan was not present in the public gallery on this 
occasion.  
 
Two Independent Members noted (in regard to Mr Ryan’s subsequent email 
exchange in March 2014 with the Parks and Open Spaces Manager); that 
grounds maintenance costs for Central Park, Hesketh Park and Savoy Road 
appeared to have increased significantly, by between 19% and 45% under the 
new maintenance contract. It was also noted that ‘grass cuts’ had reduced in 
number from 21 to 15 per annum.  
 
The Waste and Parks Manager advised the Committee of the following 
background to and detail within the new maintenance contract for the Parks: 
 

• The Council had agreed a new maintenance contract for Parks and 
Open Spaces, which differed markedly from the previous contract, both 
in terms of specification and its bill of quantities: as a consequence ‘like 
for like’ comparison with the old contract was difficult and potentially 
misleading; 

• The overall cost of the new maintenance contract for Parks and Open 
Spaces had reduced, following the deletion of a ‘Green Team’ that had 
worked on open spaces, but significantly not in the Parks. 
Consequently, in comparative terms [with the old contract], 
maintenance of the Parks under the new arrangements had not 
attracted ‘savings’ through disbandment of the ‘Green Team’. Nor had 

Agenda Item 3 Page 2



DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE 
 

MONDAY 10 MARCH 2014 
 
 

3 

grass cutting in the Parks been reduced from 21 to 15; the reduction in 
grass cutting only applied to the open spaces; 

• Under the new contract Parks maintenance had been separated out 
and given a defined budget line within the overall maintenance 
contract. As designated ‘flagship’ areas within the Borough; Central 
Park [including Kidd Legacy land], Hesketh Park and Savoy Road had 
retained 21 cuts per annum. Grass cutting continued to be undertaken 
by ride-on mower, a high cost but necessary operation given the 
acreage involved. Under the old contract terms the cost of grass cutting 
had not been separately identified, but subsumed within the overall 
contract price. Now that grass cutting had been costed and given a 
separate budget line within the overall contract; Parks maintenance 
appeared to have increased significantly; but in reality the increase 
reflected detailed costing’s for Park’s maintenance for the first time, for 
expenditure that had in previous years been subsumed within the 
overall Council maintenance contract for all works; 

• Despite the new finite budget lines resulting in an ‘increase’ in Parks 
maintenance costs, the Kidd Legacy Land [within Central Park] and 
other charity land in Dartford maintained by the Council; continued to 
benefit in real cost terms through their inclusion in the Council’s overall 
contract arrangements; given the economies of scale that attracted for 
the Charities’ lands. Were the Kidd Legacy and other Charity lands to 
be contracted out and maintained separately from the Council’s 
corporate land holdings, the cost to the Charities would be 
considerably greater. 

 
The Waste and Parks Manager confirmed for Members that, going forward, 
any increases in the new maintenance contract would be linked to increases 
in the Retail Price Index (R.P.I.). 
 
Members expressed their satisfaction with the further explanation and 
background provided by the Waste and Parks Manager regarding the 
Council’s new maintenance contract, including the arrangements for the 
continued care of charity land in Central and Hesketh Parks and Savoy Road. 
 
  
 

23. CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 15 OCTOBER 
2013  
 
The Chairman formally confirmed that Members were content with the 
accuracy of the Minutes of the previous meeting, as recorded by the 
Committee Administrator; given the various points subsequently raised by Mr 
Ryan in his letter to the Committee dated 3 February 2014.  
 
 RESOLVED: 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 15 October 2013 be confirmed as 
accurate. 

Agenda Item 3Page 3



DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE 
 

MONDAY 10 MARCH 2014 
 
 

4 

 
24. HESKETH PARK AND DARTFORD CRICKET CLUB  

 
The report asked the Committee, acting as Charitable Trustee, to respond 
formally to the planning application submitted to the Council in its capacity as 
the local planning authority, on behalf of Dartford Cricket Club for a new 
pavilion in Hesketh Park, Dartford. 
 
The Heritage, Events and Projects Managed informed Members that the 
current pavilion in Hesketh Park was in a poor state of repair, had asbestos 
within its construction, and suffered from a difficult internal working 
arrangement.  The present building was sited partly on land held by the 
Council in its corporate capacity, and partly on land held by the Council as 
Trustee of Hesketh Park. The land held by the Council as Trustee is subject to 
restrictive covenants, including the sale (but not consumption) of alcohol. This 
had necessitated the bar area in the existing building being located on 
corporate land, but not in the most suitable part of the pavilion for such use. 
 
Members were advised that in an attempt to address all these issues, 
feasibility studies had been undertaken by the Council, in its corporate 
capacity, for the construction of a new facility. The proposed scheme 
envisaged: 
 

• Construction of a new Pavilion entirely on land held by the Council 
corporately; 

• The new Pavilion would not be subject to the restrictive covenants 
pertaining to Trust land, allowing efficient and suitable internal design; 

• Following construction of the new Pavilion, the existing building would 
be demolished with cricket nets and a new shed erected 
approximately in the foot-print of the current building; 

• Following demolition of the existing Pavilion that part of the current site 
on Trust land would be retained as cricket pitches; 

• The proposed new works would also include provision for an upgraded 
car park facility, increasing capacity for the cricket and bowls clubs 
and all park users generally; 

• The revised location for the new Pavilion would improve the aspect of 
the southern edge of Hesketh Park for all users. 
 

The Managing Director informed Members that external legal advice was 
being sought, as the proposals would affect the land the Council continued to 
hold as Trustee of Hesketh Park. The proposals would also need to be 
considered in light of the Scheme of Management for Hesketh Park, the 
current lease arrangements with Dartford Cricket Club and the legal 
requirements in respect of dealing with charitable land. 
 
The Managing Director advised that when received, the external legal advice 
would form the basis of a further report to the Committee, possibly in time for 
the next ad-hoc meeting scheduled for 24 April 2014; but more likely later in 

Agenda Item 3 Page 4



DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE 
 

MONDAY 10 MARCH 2014 
 
 

5 

the year. He confirmed that the current report sought the Committee’s 
response, as Charitable Trustee, solely on the planning proposal at this stage. 
 
Members welcomed the planning proposal and noted the following additional 
information provided by the Managing Director and Officers in subsequent 
discussion: 
 

• The architect [McDonald Design] had designed the new building to 
England and Wales Cricket Board (E&WCB) standards and the 
facilities would provide for different gender and age groups; 

• The Council, in its corporate capacity, would ensure the new 
development was appropriately sited on corporate land, free from 
restrictive covenants; 

• Continued use of Trust land by Dartford Cricket Club for pitches, cricket 
nets and a new shed would comply with the terms of the Hesketh Park 
Trust and covenants; 

• The proposed new cricket pavilion would be for the use of the Dartford 
community as a whole, with the development of a ‘Colts’ [youth] team a 
particular priority; 

• The design of the new pavilion would be cricket orientated; but casual 
hire by individuals and organisations formed part of the business plan, 
without being a major component; 

 
  RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the Committee, acting as Charitable Trustee, welcomes the 
planning proposal submitted on behalf of Dartford Cricket Club for a 
new cricket pavilion at Hesketh Park, Dartford; 
 

2. That the Committee receives a further report incorporating external 
legal advice on the legal and charitable implications associated with the 
proposal. 

 
 
 

The meeting closed at 7.27 pm 
 
 Councillor A R Martin 

CHAIRMAN 

Agenda Item 3Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



 
DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE 

24 APRIL 2014 
 

HESKETH PARK AND DARTFORD CRICKET CLUB  
 

 
1. Summary 
 
1.1 This report details the legal implications associated with the proposals for a new 
cricket pavilion at Hesketh Park. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That, the Committee on behalf of the Council acting as Charitable Trustee: 
 
2.1  Notes the legal advice in exempt Appendix A on the proposals for the new 

cricket pavilion at Hesketh Park. 

2.2  Authorises the appointment of a suitably qualified surveyor, to act for the 
Council as Charitable Trustee to: 

2.2.1 prepare a report complying with the requirements of the Charities Act 2011 on 
the proposals for the surrender of the existing lease and the grant of a new 
lease of the same or a similar area of the trust land to the Hesketh Park Sports 
Club Limited; 

2.2.2 negotiate the terms for such surrender and grant of a new lease to the 
Hesketh Park Sports Club Limited; and 

2.2.3 advise on any application by the Hesketh Park Sports Club Limited under the 
terms of the Club’s existing lease for consent to demolish the existing building 
and to construct those new facilities as are referred to in the report. 
 

2.3 Authorises the advertisement of the proposed lease if required by the 
appointed surveyor. 

2.4 Notes that the surveyor’s report and advice will be the subject of a further 
report or reports to the Committee. 

2.5 Notes that the surveyor’s fees, and the costs of any advertisement and the 
public notice will be met by the Council in its corporate capacity. 

 

 
3. Background and Discussion 

 
3.1. At its last meeting on 10 March 2014 the Committee received a report 

on the proposals for a new cricket pavilion at Hesketh Park and it was 
resolved as follows [Min.No.24]:   

“1.  That the Committee, acting as Charitable Trustee, welcomes the 
planning proposal submitted on behalf of Dartford Cricket Club 
for a new cricket pavilion at Hesketh Park, Dartford; 

Agenda Item 5Page 7



 
DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE 

24 APRIL 2014 
 

 2. That the Committee receives a further report incorporating 
external legal advice on the legal and charitable implications 
associated with the proposal.” 

 
3.2. External legal advice was sought as set out in exempt Appendix A to 

this report. 

3.3. Part of the land held under the charitable trusts is currently leased to 
the Hesketh Park Sports Club Limited (the Cricket Club) together with 
land held separately by the Council in its corporate capacity. The lease 
was granted before the Council realised that the bequeathed land was 
held on charitable trusts. As a result the Council dealt with the grant of 
the existing lease in the same way as it would for any of its corporate 
land holdings. At the time, the Council did not follow the Charities Act 
requirements, and only one lease was granted to the Cricket Club 
covering both the charitable and corporate land holdings.  

3.4. The Charity Commission were supplied with a copy of the existing 
lease, and made aware of the situation when the Council applied for a 
Scheme of Management to govern the operation of the charity.  

3.5. Although no concerns were raised by the Charity Commission about 
the current arrangements, the status of the existing lease needs to be 
taken into account in the light of the proposals for the development of 
the site. 

3.6. The development proposals will require consent of the Council (both as 
Trustee and in its corporate capacity) and the terms of the existing 
lease (including the rent) will need to be reconsidered. The existing 
lease will expire on 31 March 2022 but the Cricket Club are likely to 
require a leasehold interest in the site for a longer term in order to 
obtain grant funding from other sources in the future 

3.7. It is recommended that new lease arrangements are put in place, with 
separate leases being granted to the Cricket Club by the Council as 
Trustee and in its corporate capacity to cover the charitable and 
corporate land holdings respectively. 

3.8. It may also be necessary to deal with the surrender of the existing 
lease. However; if the area leased to the Cricket Club under the terms 
of the new leases encompass all the area currently leased to the Club 
under the existing lease, then such surrender will automatically take 
place by operation of law. 

3.9. The Council as Trustee will need to comply with the requirements of 
the Charities Act 2011 in respect of the grant of any lease of the 
charitable land. 

3.10. It will be necessary to obtain a report from a qualified surveyor on the 
proposals (who must be instructed by the Council as Trustee and 
acting exclusively for it) and to advertise the proposed lease for such 

Agenda Item 5 Page 8



 
DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE 

24 APRIL 2014 
 

period and in such manner as advised in that surveyor’s report (unless 
the surveyor advises it is not in the charity’s best interests to advertise).  

3.11. The surveyor’s report will then need to be carefully considered by the 
Council as Trustee to decide whether the terms of the proposed lease 
are the best that can be reasonably obtained for the charity.  The 
surveyor’s report will therefore be the subject of a further report to the 
Committee.  

3.12. Additionally, the Trustee must give at least one month’s public notice of 
the proposed lease inviting any representations, and take into account 
any representations made within that period.  The public notice will 
need to be given once lease terms have been agreed with the Cricket 
Club and the Council as Charitable Trustee is satisfied that those terms 
are the best that can reasonably be obtained for the charity. Any 
representations to the proposed lease (whether objecting or supporting 
the proposals) will then need to be considered at a future meeting of 
the Committee. 

3.13. It is proposed that a surveyor be instructed as soon as possible to 
prepare the report, and also to advise the Council in its capacity as 
Trustee in negotiating the terms of the proposed lease of the charitable 
land with the Cricket Club. The lease of the corporate land will be dealt 
with separately, but the leases will need to be drafted in such a way 
that they work together in practice (for example, as to the length of the 
term). 

3.14. If the surveyor advises that the proposed lease should be advertised, 
authority is also sought to advertise for such period and in such 
manner as the surveyor advises. 

3.15. Planning permission has already been submitted by the Council in its 
corporate capacity for the carrying out of the development works 
(application reference 14/00221/FUL). The planning application will be 
referred to the Council’s Development Control Board in due course.  

3.16. If planning consent is forthcoming, then the Cricket Club have 
expressed a desire that the works start on site as soon as possible. 
With that in mind, the Cricket Club may wish to apply to the Council as 
Trustee for consent under the terms of the existing Lease to carry out 
the works on the charitable area of the site.  Consent would also need 
to be sought by the Club from the Council in its corporate capacity. 

3.17. These works, which are detailed further in the planning application, 
would include:  

3.17.1 The demolition of the existing pavilion building, which area will partially 
be replaced by hardstanding and cricket nets; and  

 

Agenda Item 5Page 9



 
DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE 

24 APRIL 2014 
 
3.17.2 the construction of a patio area to serve the new pavilion building by 

extending the existing tarmacked footpath on the charitable land, which 
building will otherwise be wholly constructed on the land held 
corporately by the Council. 

3.18. It is therefore recommended that surveyor is also appointed to advise 
the Council as Trustee on any such application for consent by the 
Cricket Club, and that the surveyor’s recommendations are then 
considered at a future meeting of the Committee. 

3.19. The costs of the appointment of the surveyor, and advertisement and 
the final public notice will be met by the Council corporately. 

4. Relationship to the Object(s) of the Trust 
 
4.1 The object of the charity is as set out in the original trusts, and 

confirmed in the governing Scheme of Management, namely the use of 
the land as a recreation ground for the use of the inhabitants of 
Dartford. 

 
4.2 All charities have charitable purposes or ‘aims’ that are for the public 

benefit. The Charities Act 2011 highlights this by explicitly including 
public benefit in the definition of a charitable purpose. The Council in its 
capacity as Trustee must be satisfied that its activities fall within the 
charitable aims and are for the public benefit. 

 
5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 

assessments 
 

Financial Implications for 
the Trust 

None at this stage. 

Legal Implications for the 
Trust 

As set out in the body of the report and exempt 
Appendix A. 

Risk Implications for the 
Trust 

As set out in exempt Appendix A. 

 
6. Details of Exempt Information Category 
 
 Not applicable for the main body of the report. 
 

Appendix A has been placed on the closed part of the agenda because 
it contains exempt information within Standing Order 46(1) (b) and 
Annex 1, paragraph 5, namely information in respect of which a claim 
to legal professional privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings 
and in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in not 
disclosing the information outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information.    

 
 

Agenda Item 5 Page 10



 
DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE 

24 APRIL 2014 
 
 
7. Appendices 
 

Exempt Appendix A – Legal Advice from external solicitors dated 
March 2014 

 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents consulted Date / 
File Ref 

Report Author Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 
 

Advice Note from external 
solicitors March 2014 

 Sarah Cotton 
(01322) 34118 

Legal 
Services – 
Managing 
Director 

SO(46)(1)(b) 
Annex 1  
para.5 

     

  

Agenda Item 5Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item APage 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Agenda Item APage 14

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item APage 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Confirmation of Minutes of the meeting held on 10 March 2014
	5 Hesketh Park and Dartford Cricket Club
	A Legal Advice from external solicitor - Summary and Advice Note
	Appendix A part II - Hesketh Park Advice note from External Solicitor


